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J. DESCRIPTION
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (1f fmown) PHYSICAL ARPEARANCE

As originally built Sweet Briar was a typical Piedmont Federal-style
brick farmhouse, featuring a hipped roof, a two-level pedimented portico,
and exterior end chimneys. Although the oldest section of the house has
a single pile plan, it has a centered two-story rear ell which may be
original. In 1851, the house underwent an extensive remodelling in an
attempt to transform it into an Italianate Villa-style country house.

The original portico was removed and substituted by a two-level arcaded
portico with a one-story verandah across the facade. The plain molded
cornice was replaced by a simple modillion cornice, At the ends of the
house were placed two three-story Italianate towers of slightly unequ Ty
height and form. Both towers, however, feature three-part windows on
the upper levels and ornamental iron balconies. Both towers also are
topped by shallow hipped roofs. The entire house was painted a uniform
cream color with white trim. Following these alterations and additioms,
the house received further additions on the rear at different times, part

of which may date from the early-twentieth century.

Most of the interior trim of the original section survives, although some
of the mantels have been replaced by Victorian ones. The original woodworl
is of the simplest type, with no outstanding details. Much of the trim

in the entrance hall was replaced as a result of a fire in 1927. The
simple trim in the tower rooms complements the fine Victorian furniture,
much of which was purchased by the Fletcher family in Philadelphia and

New York especially for the house. The first floor tower rooms are
further enhanced by elaborate bronze chandeliers and marble mantels.

‘Many Fletcher pieces remain in the rest of the house, making the place

an important document of mid-nineteenth century interior decoration.

The house is set in a spacious informal park featuring ornamental trees
and numerous large bexwood. Boxwood in front of the house that
originally lined a circular drive have grown to great height and make

a handsome frame for the facade. In the rear of the house is an

early but largely rebuilt outbuilding that belonged to the original farm

complex.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Sweet Briar House was probably built in the first quarter of the
nineteenth century by the Crews (or Crouse) family as a six-room,
T-shaped farmhouse. The land on which the house was built was
part of a grant by the Créwn’fo George Carrington in 1770, At a
public auction in 1830, the property, known as Locust Ridge, was
bought by Elijah Fletcher, a New England school teacher who had
come to Virginia in 1810.

Elijah Fletcher was the owner and publisher of The Virginian, a

Whig newspaper in Lynchburg; he also served as the mayor of that city.
Mrs, Fletcher, the former Maria Antoinette Crawford of nearby Tusculum,
changed the name of the property to Sweet Briar, for the abundance

of wild roses that grew there. At first a weekend retreat, the
Fletchers made Sweet Briar their permanent home in 1846. In the spring
of 1851, Fletcher, began the enlargement of the house by the additien

of the'tower wings and' the connecting arcaded ‘portico in the Itdlianm
Villa style. The project was completed in about eighteen months.

After Fletcher's death in 1858, his daughter Indiana inherited the
house. In 1865 she married James Henry Williams, an Episcopal”
clergyman, and two years %ater their only child, Daisy, was born.
Daisy died when only Seveénteen years old, and it was in her memory
that her sorrowing parents made plans to found a school for girls

and young women. The college was established in accordance with
provisions of Mrs. Williams' will; its charter was granted by the
Commonwealth of Virginia in 1901; and the first students matriculated
in 1906, The house now serves as the reaidence for the president of
Sweet Briar College, one of the nation's most prestigious women's

colleges.

As a result of the 1851 remodelling, Sweet Briar House stands today

as 4 major example of the Italian Villa style in Virginia. In a semse
Sweet Briar achieved its picturesque effect in much the same manner

as its prototype, the vernacular Italian farmhouse - through alteration
and additions. Unfortunately the architect of the remodelling is
unknown, although an unsigned contemporary rendering of the facade
showing its additions survives in the College Library. Not only is

the quality of the picturesque evident in the architecture of the
house, but the informal gardems originally laid out by Elijah Fletcher

disp lgy a romantic inspiration as well, The many large boxwoods have
long been a favorite attractiom.
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U.5.G.S. 74" quadrangle(Scale:1:24000)
Amherst, Va, 1963

Sweet Briar Houss
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